

**24.33.02 – RULES FOR THE LICENSURE OF PHYSICIAN ASSISTANTS**

**000. LEGAL AUTHORITY.**

These rules are promulgated pursuant to Sections 54-1806 and 54-1807A, 54-1810A Idaho Code. (3-28-23)

**Commented [R1]:** Under 54-1807A, "[t]he licensure requirements for physician assistants shall include passage of an examination acceptable to the board." The rules do not appear to note any examination acceptable to the board, so we may need to add that to the rules.

**001. SCOPE.**

These rules govern the practice of physician assistants and graduate physician assistants. (3-28-23)

**Commented [SL2R1]:** Examination - NCCPA: PANCE

~~002. – 009. (RESERVED)~~

~~010. DEFINITIONS.~~

~~01. **Approved Program.** A course of study for the education and training of physician assistants that is accredited by the Accreditation Review Commission on Education for Physician Assistants (ARCPA) or predecessor agency or equivalent agency recognized by the Board as recommended by the Committee. (3-28-23)~~

**Commented [R3]:** Appears duplicative of 54-1810A(1).

~~014002. – 019099. (RESERVED)~~

~~020. REQUIREMENTS FOR LICENSURE.~~

~~Requirements for licensure and renewal are found in Title 54, Chapter 18, Idaho Code, IDAPA 24.33.03, and on Board-approved forms. (3-28-23)~~

**Commented [R4]:** Superfluous and duplicative of 54-1807A(1) and 54-1810A.

~~021. – 027. (RESERVED)~~

**100. LICENSURE**

01. **Acceptable Examination.** National Commission on Certification of Physician Assistants (NCCPA) Physician Assistant National Certifying Examination (PANCE).

02. **Graduate Physician Assistant.**

~~104. – 199. (RESERVED)~~

**200. PRACTICE STANDARDS**

**028. SCOPE OF PRACTICE.**

~~01. **Scope.** The scope of practice of physician assistants and graduate physician assistants includes only those duties and responsibilities identified in a collaborative practice agreement or the facility bylaws or procedures of any facility with credentialing and privileging systems. (3-28-23)~~

**Commented [RS5]:** Appears duplicative of 54-1807A(2).

~~0201. **Collaborative Practice Agreement.** A collaborative practice agreement, in addition to complying will comply with Title 54, Chapter 18, Idaho Code Idaho Code \*54-1807A(2) and will contain the following elements: (3-28-23)~~

~~a. The parties to the agreement; (3-28-23)~~

~~b. The authorized scope of practice for each licensed physician assistant or graduate physician assistant; (3-28-23)~~

~~c. A requirement that the physician assistant or graduate physician assistant must collaborate with, consult with, or make appropriate referrals to the collaborating physician or another appropriate physician as indicated by: the condition of the patient; the education, experience and competence of the physician assistant or~~

~~graduate physician assistant; and the community standard of care; and (3-28-23)~~

~~d.~~ If necessary, any monitoring parameters. (3-28-23)

~~0302. Advertise.~~ No physician assistant or graduate physician assistant may advertise or represent himself either directly or indirectly, as a physician. (3-28-23)

~~0403. Emergency or Disaster Care.~~ A collaborative practice agreement is not necessary for a licensed physician assistant or graduate physician assistant to render medical services to an ill or injured person at the scene of an emergency or disaster (not to be defined as an emergency situation which occurs in the place of one's employment) and while continuing to care for such person. (3-28-23)

~~02903. continuing Continuing education Education requirements Requirements.~~

~~Requirements for Renewal.~~ Prior to renewal of each a license as set forth by the expiration date on the face of the certificate, physician assistants shall attest to maintenance of current certification by the National Commission on Certification of Physician Assistants or a similar certifying agency approved by the Board, ~~which certification requires a minimum of one hundred (100) hours of continuing medical education over a two-year (2) period.~~ (3-28-23)

~~030. -- 035. (RESERVED)~~

~~036. GRADUATE PHYSICIAN ASSISTANT.~~

~~01. Licensure Prior to Certification Examination -- Board Consideration.~~ Any person who has graduated from an approved physician assistant training program and substantially meets all the Idaho requirements set forth in 54-1803(10)(a), ~~including achieving a college baccalaureate degree, but has not yet taken and passed the certification examination; may apply to be considered by the Board for licensure as a graduate physician assistant for six (6) months when an application for licensure as a graduate physician assistant has been submitted to the Board on forms supplied by the Board and payment of the prescribed fee, provided:~~ (3-28-23)

~~a.~~ The applicant will submit to the Board, ~~within ten (10) business days of receipt, a copy of acknowledgment of sitting for the national certification examination. The applicant will submit to the Board, within ten (10) business days of receipt, a copy of the national certification examination results.~~ (3-28-23)

~~b.~~ After the graduate physician assistant has passed the certification examination, the Board will receive verification of national certification directly from the certifying entity. ~~Once Upon the primary source verification of passing the examination is received by the Board, the graduate physician assistant's license will be converted to a permanent license and he may apply for prescribing authority.~~ (3-28-23)

~~c.~~ The applicant who has failed the certification examination one (1) time, may petition the Board for a one-time extension of his graduate physician assistant license for an additional six (6) months. (3-28-23)

~~d.~~ If the graduate physician assistant fails to pass the certifying examination on two (2) separate occasions, the graduate physician assistant's license will automatically be canceled upon receipt of the second failing certification examination score. (3-28-23)

~~e.~~ The graduate physician assistant applicant will agree to execute an authorization for the release of information, attached to his application as Exhibit A, authorizing the Board or its designated agents, having information relevant to the application, including but not limited to the status of the certification examination, to release such information, as necessary, to his supervising physician. (3-28-23)

~~02. Licensure Prior to College Baccalaureate Degree -- Board Consideration.~~ Licensure as a graduate physician assistant may also be considered upon application made to the Board on forms supplied by the Board and payment of the prescribed fee when all application requirements have been met as set forth in Section 020 of these rules, except receipt of documentation of a college baccalaureate degree, provided: (3-28-23)

Commented [SL6]: Is this commonly understood? Does it need to be stated?

Commented [SL7R6]: Leave in

Commented [RS8]: This might be unnecessary; under 54-1804(1)(i), no license is required to render emergency medical assistance, much less a collaborative practice agreement.

Commented [SL9R8]: Leave in

Commented [SL10]: Move to 100.03

Commented [RS11]: This appears duplicative of 54-1803(10)(a).

Commented [SL12]: Move to 100.02

Commented [SL13]: And then what? Can they reapply for a full license upon passage of the exam?

Commented [SL14]: Standard for most applications.

~~a. A college baccalaureate degree from a nationally accredited school with a curriculum approved by the United States Secretary of Education, the Council for Higher Education Accreditation, or both, or from a school accredited by another such agency approved by the Board shall be completed within five (5) years of initial licensure in Idaho; (3-28-23)~~

Commented [SL15]: Need context. Does this need to be stated?

Commented [SL16R15]: Delete

~~0304. No Graduate Physician Assistant Prescribing Authority. Graduate physician assistants shall not be entitled to issue any written or oral prescriptions unless granted an exemption by the Board. Application for an exemption must be in writing and accompany documentation of a minimum of five (5) years of recent practice as a physician assistant in another state.~~

(3-28-23)

~~037205. -- 050399.~~

(RESERVED)

~~051400. FEES -- TABLE.~~

~~Nonrefundable fees are as follows:~~

| Fees – Table (Non-Refundable)                                      |                               |
|--|-------------------------------|
| Licensure Fee - Physician Assistant & Graduate Physician Assistant | - Not more than \$250         |
| Annual License Renewal Fee   | - Not more than \$150         |
| Reinstatement Fee  | - \$50 plus past renewal fees |
| Reinstatement Fee for Graduate Physician Assistant                 | - Not more than \$100         |
| Inactive License Fee   | - Not more than \$150         |
| Annual Renewal of Inactive License Fee                             | - Not more than \$100         |
| Inactive Conversion Fee  | - Not more than \$150         |

Commented [SL17]: Reinstatements and fees are outlined in 67-2614

(3-28-23)

~~052401. -- 999. (RESERVED)~~

**24.33.02 – RULES FOR THE LICENSURE OF PHYSICIAN ASSISTANTS**

**000. LEGAL AUTHORITY.**

These rules are promulgated pursuant to Sections 54-1806 and 54-1807A, 54-1810A Idaho Code. ( )

**001. SCOPE.**

These rules govern the practice of physician assistants and graduate physician assistants. ( )

**002. -- 099. (RESERVED)**

**100. LICENSURE**

**01. Acceptable Examination.** National Commission on Certification of Physician Assistants (NCCPA) Physician Assistant National Certifying Examination (PANCE). ( )

**02. Graduate Physician Assistant.** Any person who substantially meets the requirements set forth in 54-1803(10)(a) may apply to the Board for licensure as a graduate physician assistant for six (6) months, provided: ( )

**a.** The applicant will submit to the Board a copy of acknowledgment of sitting for the national certification examination. Upon primary source verification of passing the examination by the Board, the graduate physician assistant's license will be converted to a permanent license and he may apply for prescribing authority. ( )

**03. Continuing Education Requirements.** Prior to renewal of a license physician assistants shall attest to current certification by the national commission on certification of physician assistants or a similar certifying agency approved by the board. ( )

**104. -- 199. (RESERVED)**

**200. PRACTICE STANDARDS**

**01. Collaborative Practice Agreement.** A collaborative practice agreement, in addition to complying Idaho Code §54-1807A(2) will contain the following elements: ( )

- a.** The parties to the agreement; ( )
- b.** The authorized scope of practice for each licensed physician assistant or graduate physician assistant; ( )
- c.** If necessary, any monitoring parameters. ( )

**02. Advertise.** No physician assistant or graduate physician assistant may advertise or represent himself either directly or indirectly, as a physician. ( )

**03. Emergency or Disaster Care.** A collaborative practice agreement is not necessary for a licensed physician assistant or graduate physician assistant to render medical services to an ill or injured person at the scene of an emergency or disaster (not to be defined as an emergency situation which occurs in the place of one's employment) and while continuing to care for such person. ( )

**04. Graduate Physician Assistant Prescribing Authority.** Graduate physician assistants shall not be entitled to issue any written or oral prescriptions ( )

205. -- 399. (RESERVED)

**400. FEES.**

Nonrefundable fees are as follows:

| <b>Fees – Table (Non-Refundable)</b>                               |                       |
|--|-----------------------|
| Licensure Fee - Physician Assistant & Graduate Physician Assistant | - Not more than \$250 |
| Annual License Renewal Fee   | - Not more than \$150 |

( )

401. -- 999. (RESERVED)

DRAFT 2